Minutes for Town of Minnesott Beach
Board of Commissioners' Meeting
April 10,2018

The meeting of the Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town of Minnesott Beach, was held
Tuesday, April 10, 2018 at 7:00 P.M at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

Board members present: Mayor Tim Fowler, Mayor Pro Tem Adam Garfinkel,
Commissioner Pete Hall and Commissioner Cliff Braly.
Board members absent: Commissioner Cathy Hurm

Others present: Carolyn Braly, Town Manager; George Pawlikowski, Greg & Starr
Murphy, Steve & Amy Merz.

Mayor Fowler welcomed everyone to the meeting, called the meeting to order at 7:00pm
with a moment of silence and lead everyone in the pledge of alliance to the flag.

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to the April 10, 2018 agenda.
Commissioner Hall asked to add Dog Complaints to New Business. Commissioner Braly
moved to approve the agenda as amended. All ayes.

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to March 13, 2018 regular meeting
minutes. Commissioner Hall moved to approve the minutes. All ayes.

Public Comments: Starr Murphy reported that her backdoor neighbor does not have
control over her dog. She said the dog has been an issue for the neighborhood for some
months. Ms. Murphy said in December she had talked with the dog’s owner about him
jumping the fence. The owner is the daughter of the woman who owns the house on
Phillips Drive. Ms. Murphy said she offered her help to work on the fence but she said
“no, that would not be a problem and she would handle it.” The dog continues to jump the
fence and get out. Ms. Murphy said there have been at least three occasions in March of
the dog coming into their fenced in backyard at 10pm, 2:00am and one afternoon. The dog
howls, barks and scratches at their door. The owner came out both of the night time
episodes because Ms. Murphy was yelling at the dog. Ms. Murphy said it appears the only
way she can get the dog home is to drive down the road with the dog chasing the car. She
said she had asked the neighbor to keep her dog in her yard. The third episode, the dog
was in her garage. Ms. Murphy said she had talked with her neighbor twice with no
success. There are photos of the dog running loose and chasing the car. Ms. Murphy said
there are other neighbors who have the complaint forms and plan to file them with the
town.

Amy Merz- said she lives directly across the street. She said she was out walking their dog
with her children on bikes. The dog, Blue, was approaching them in the road and she
hurried to get her dog into the house, because Blue came into their yard barking. Ms. Merz
reported the dog was on their porch one night and the neighbor had to drive her car down
the road to get Blue to chase it home. She said the dog barks at them and acts aggressively.

Mayor Fowler thanked all for coming to the meeting and for their input.



Town Manager’s report: There is one zoning application waiting for approval. It is for a
porch & deck addition at 380 Indian Bluff Dr.

The newsletter was mailed on April 5.

Ms. Braly reported she had requested Glenda Raynor of Sale/Loft Realty to verify the
placement of shed on 418 Indian Bluff Drive as is shown on the zoning application dated
3/1/18. No response yet.

Planning Board Report: Commissioner Garfinkel reported there was no April
Planning Board meeting.

Old Business for discussion and possible action:

1.

Town Projects: Commissioner Braly reported the shop/garage area has been wired
so Larry and Thomas can move the compressor and work bench. The next big
project will be the remodeling of the office area of the Town Hall, including
bringing the bathrooms up to handicap code. He said he is trying to find a
reasonable way of getting plans drawn so he can get a bid for the work to the
interior. '

Commissioner Braly reported he had gotten a bid from Paul Toler with American
Tree to cut and remove trees and cut back the overhang around the parking area at a
rate of $1500 per day. He estimated it would take about 3 days to do the job. The
drainage work on Country Club Drive West moving along slowly. The next step
will be to move the dirt from the pile at the Town Hall and plant grass and sod.
Commissioner Braly reported he had taken the town’s truck to Cella Ford for
repairs. They replaced the alternator, the battery and O2 sensor. Commissioner

Braly moved to approve the payment of approximately $1100.to.Cella Ford. All

ayes.
Town Clean-up: Commissioner Braly said Paul Toler is furnishing his truck and a
driver for the Town cleanup. Larry and Thomas will have extra helpers.

New Business:

1.

Road encroachment: Mr. George Pawlikowski said the town’s street, Country
Club Drive, encroaches on his property. When the road was paved the stake on the
east corner of Country Club Drive and his property was removed. He stated that he
would like his property surveyed and a new stake put in. Commissioner Braly
inquired as to how he looked for the stake. Mr. Pawlikowski stated the water
department, a while ago, was around and had a device that had a very strong
magnet. Had the marker just been knocked over the magnet would have been able
to locate it. Mr. Pawlikowski knows where the stake should be and it is not there.
He mentioned that Mayor Fowler had gone out a year or two ago to look at it.
Mayor Fowler stated that it was 5-6 years ago. Mr. Pawlikowski stated he had dug
with a chisel where it should be and it is not there. He said since the town had
paved this street then we should be responsible for surveying it and putting the
stake back where it belongs. Mr. Pawlikowski said the road IS on his property by
about a foot and he wants it straightened out. He said this has been an ongoing
complaint for him. Mayor Fowler said the town needs a survey that shows the
town’s street is encroaching on Mr. Pawlikowski’s property. If the pavement is on



Mr. Pawlikowski’s property, the Town will remove the asphalt from the property.
Commissioner Braly said once the corner has been located, the town will have to
assess a reasonable and practical way to correct the situation. Mayor Fowler said
the town has a 60° right of way. Thirty feet on each side of the centerline. Mr.
Pawlikowski said he had a survey showing the encroachment.

Dog complaints: Commissioner Hall gave a brief history of the recent dog
complaints. Two months ago, Commissioner Hall said he spoke to Berkley Hill,
Pamlico Co Animal Control officer about the dog in question. It was determined at
that time, since the dog has not been declared a dangerous animal, this is a Town
problem. Commissioner Hall said this has been going on for almost a year with
numerous complaints and recommended having a hearing. Mayor Fowler asked for
a letter be sent to the owner of the dog to notify them of a hearing at the Board of
Commissioners” meeting in May as required by our Code of Ordinances. Mayor
Fowler said the fines/penalties for animal violations in the Code of Ordinances was
updated December 2017 and will be posted online.

Proposed budget: In the absence of Commissioner Hurm, Mayor Fowler said all
the commissioners have a copy of the proposed budget. He said that he,
Commissioner Hurm and Town Manager Braly had reviewed the proposed budget.
He read into the record Commissioner Hurm’s budget proposal: “Affer reviewing
our 2016-2017, 2017-2018 budgets and our current financial status, a proposed
balanced budget for 2018-2019 is being presented to the Board of Commissioners
(BOC). Please review for discussion and finalization at the May meeting. It
proposes a reduced tax rate from .13/100 to .11/100 based on the town’s financial
status with at least two and one half years of operating expenses on hand. An
employee pay raise of 3% per employee is recommended based on the Consumer
Price Index (CPI) of 2%, which is commonly used for determining cost of living pay
increases.”

Mayor Fowler asked the commissioners to please take a look at the budget and be
prepared.to.offer any changes or updates at the next meeting. This will.take affect.
July 1, 2018. He pointed out to Commissioner Braly the Expense Acct. 406 & 411
and asked if that would cover remodeling of the office and landscaping.
Commissioner Braly said he thought it would. Mayor Fowler said the budget
would be approved by the Commissioners in May and will be voted on after a
public hearing in June. Mayor Fowler said one issue to be prepared to talk about at
the next meeting is employee pay raises. The proposal is 3% cost of living raise
and there has been some discussion of a 5% raise which would include a 2% merit
raise. It has been 5% for the past two years. Mayor Fowler said if there were any
questions to please ask Carolyn, Cathy or him. The proposed budget is made a part
of these minutes by reference and can be reviewed at the Town Hall.
Commissioner Hall asked if anyone was looking at how the town’s future budget
would be affected by the lost tax revenue if the MG&CC’s zoning status changed.
Mayor Fowler said it was not being looked into at this time. He said it is a long
process to change the zoning which would begin with the Planning Board and that
would be one of many questions that would be brought up.



Financial Report — In the absence of Commissioner Hurm, the Town Manager, Carolyn
Braly, reported a CD at CressCom Bank was renewed for 14 months for 1.55%.

Mrs. Braly reported revenues are coming in as expected with expenses well within the
budgeted totals. The Town’s current assets as of March 31, 2018 are: First Citizen's Bank
Checking $5,301.57; First Citizen's MM $224,999.60; CressCom Bank’s Savings
$217,671.42; North Carolina Management Trust is $203,056.57; Petty Cash $50.00. The
town currently has CDs at First South Bank & Savings totaling $228,806.62. Total assets
for the Town are $901,840.79. The commissioners all have a copy of the financial report
which, by reference, is made a part of the minutes and may be viewed at the townhall.

Miscellaneous: Commissioner Garfinkel asked for a clarification.the Town’s
responsibility regarding Mr. Pawlikowski’s issue of the encroachment of Country Club
Drive on his property. Is he asking for his stake to be replaced or asking who removed it?
Mayor Fowler said Mr. Pawlikowski has to identify that the town’s road encroaches on his
property, then the town can replace the stake and remove any asphalt from his property.

There being no further business, Commissioner Braly moved to adjourn the meeting. All

Mo sdoatt

Donna Scott, Town Clerk




